
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE TRAINING 

2.00 pm

FRIDAY
14 JULY 2017

Meeting Room 1 - Shire Hall, 
Gloucester

MEETING PAPERS





AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
TIME: 2.00 pm
DATE: Friday 14 July 2017
VENUE: Meeting Room 1 - Shire Hall, Gloucester

A G E N D A

ITEM TOPIC CONTACT

1.  Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 & Local Code of 
Corporate Governance 2016/17 (Pages 1 - 36)

Theresa Mortimer

2.  Annual Statement of Accounts (Pages 37 - 68) Paul Blacker

NOTES

(a) MEMBERSHIP – Councillors Cllr Colin Hay, Cllr David Norman MBE, 
Cllr Brian Oosthuysen, Cllr Shaun Parsons, Cllr John Payne, 
Cllr Keith Rippington, Cllr Nigel Robbins OBE, Cllr Brian Tipper and 
Cllr Will Windsor-Clive

(b) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification 
about whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the 
Monitoring Officer: Jane Burns 01452 328472 /fax: 425149/e-mail: 
jane.burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk prior to the commencement of the meeting. 

GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS

(1) Will Members please sign the attendance list.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the 
meeting please leave as directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the 
assembly point which is outside the main entrance to Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  
Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:jane.burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



1 
  

Annual Governance Statement 
2016/17

P
age 1

A
genda Item

 1



2 
  

Contents 

Scope of Responsibility ...................................................................................................................................................................................... 3 

What is Governance? ......................................................................................................................................................................................... 4 

What is the purpose of a Governance Framework? ........................................................................................................................................... 4 

What is the Annual Governance Statement? ...................................................................................................................................................... 5 

What is a Governance Assurance Framework? ................................................................................................................................................. 6 

What is the Council’s Governance Assurance Framework? ............................................................................................................................... 7 

How has the Annual Governance Statement been prepared?............................................................................................................................ 8 

How does the Council monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of its governance arrangements? ..................................................................... 8 

What are the key elements of GCC’s Governance Framework? ........................................................................................................................ 9 

How has the Council addressed the governance improvement actions from 2015/16? ................................................................................... 18 

What are the key 2016/17 Governance matters identified?   . .......................................................................................................................... 21 

Certification ....................................................................................................................................................................................................... 25 

  

P
age 2



3 
  

Scope of Responsibility 
Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper 

standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The Council 

also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its 

functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 
 

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, 

and facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, which includes arrangements for the management of risk. 

GCC acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring that there is effective governance within the Council and as such has developed a Code of 

Corporate Governance that defines the principles and practices that underpin the governance arrangements operating within the Council.  

The Code is reviewed and updated annually and is consistent with the seven core principles of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 

Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Society of Local Authority Chief Executives (SOLACE) guidance ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local 

Government framework - 2016 Edition’, the key focus being on sustainability i.e. economic, social and environmental and the need to focus 

on the longer term and the impact actions may have on future generations. 

A copy of the Code can be accessed on the Council’s website. However, a summary of the seven core principles upon which it is based can 

be found on page 9 of this document.  

This statement explains how the Council has complied with the Code and also meets the requirements of the Accounts and Audit 

Regulations 2015, regulation 6(1) (a) and (b), which requires the Council to prepare and publish an Annual Governance Statement (AGS).      

The responsibility for leading and directing the annual reviews of the effectiveness of the Council’s governance arrangements against the 

Code and providing ongoing oversight and robust challenge, is the Council’s Statutory Officers, comprising, the Chief Executive, Chief 

Financial Officer (S151) and the Monitoring Officer and when completed, the findings are reported to and improvement actions identified are 

monitored by the Audit and Governance Committee. 

P
age 3



4 
  

What is Governance? 
Governance is about how the Council ensures that it is doing the right things, in the right way, for the right people in a timely, inclusive, open, 

honest and accountable manner. Good governance leads to effective: 

 leadership and management;  

 performance and risk management;  

 stewardship of public money; and 

 public engagement and outcomes for our citizens and service users.  

What is the purpose of a Governance Framework? 
The governance framework comprises the culture, values, systems and processes by which an organisation is directed and controlled. It 

enables the Council to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery 

of appropriate services and value for money. The system of internal control is a significant part of the framework and is designed to manage 

risk to a reasonable level. It assures that in conducting its business, the Council: 

 operates in a lawful, open, inclusive and honest manner;  

 makes sure that public money and assets are safeguarded from inappropriate use, or from loss and fraud, properly accounted for and 

used economically, efficiently and effectively;  

 has effective arrangements for the management of risk; 

 secures continuous improvement in the way that it operates; 

 enables human, financial, environmental and other resources to be managed efficiently and effectively;  

 properly maintains records and information; and 

 ensures its values and ethical standards are met. 

P
age 4



5 
  

What is the Annual Governance Statement?  

The Council is required by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 to prepare and publish an Annual Governance Statement, in order to 

report publicly on the extent to which we comply with our own Local Code of Corporate Governance, including how we have monitored the 

effectiveness of our arrangements in year and on any planned changes to our governance arrangements in the coming year.  

In this document the Council:  

 acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring that there is a sound system of governance;  

 summarises the key elements of the governance framework and the roles of those responsible for the development and maintenance 

of the governance environment;  

 describes how the Council has monitored and evaluated the effectiveness of its governance arrangements in the year, and on any 

planned changes in the coming period;  

 provides details of how the Council has responded to any issue(s) identified in last year’s governance statement; and 

 reports on any key governance matters identified from this review and provides a commitment to addressing them.  

The Annual Governance Statement reports on the governance framework that has been in place at Gloucestershire County Council for the 

year ended 31st March 2017 and up to the date of approval of the statement of accounts. 

It should be noted however, that any system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all 

risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.  

The Council’s Governance Assurance Framework, which underpins the AGS, has been in place at the Council for the year ended 31st 

March 2017 and up to the date of approval of the AGS and Statement of Accounts.  

 

P
age 5



6 
  

What is a Governance Assurance Framework?  
 

Assurance provides confidence, based on sufficient evidence, that internal controls are in place and are operating effectively and that 

objectives are being achieved. An Assurance Framework is a structure within which Members and Senior Management identify the principal 

risks to the Council meeting its key objectives, and through which they map out both the key controls to manage them and how they have 

gained sufficient assurance about the effectiveness of those controls. The assurance framework underpins the statements made within the 

Annual Governance Statement.  

A governance assurance process is in place to provide a framework for the annual assessment of the effectiveness of the governance 

arrangements operating within the Council. This includes Cabinet Member overview and oversight and robust challenge by the Council’s 

Statutory Officers i.e. the Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer and Chief Financial Officer.  

In addition, ‘the three lines of defence assurance model’ is in place which helps Members and Senior Management to understand where 

assurances are being obtained from, the level of reliance they place on that assurance and identify potential gaps in assurance.  

The Three Lines of Defence in effective Risk Management and Control 

Assurance can come from many sources within the Council. The Three Lines of Defence is a concept for helping to identify and understand 

the different sources of assurance.  

By defining these sources into three categories i.e. the First Line (functions that own and manage risks e.g. management and supervisory 

controls), the Second Line (functions that oversee risks e.g. Governance structures and processes such as Audit and Governance 

Committee, Scrutiny, Boards) and the Third Line (functions that provide independent assurance on the management of risks e.g. OFSTED, 

Internal/External Audit), helps the Council understand how each contributes to the overall level of assurance and how best they can be 

integrated and supported. Please see page 7 below which summarises the Council’s governance assurance framework, which is based on 

the three lines of defence model.  

P
age 6



7 
  

What is the Council’s Governance Assurance Framework?  

 

 

 

  

2nd Line of Defence 

Oversight and Support 
Strategy / Policy / Direction setting, 

decision-making, assurance oversight 

1st Line of Defence 

Business and Operational 

Management 
Delivering objectives, Identifying risks 

and improvement actions, implementing 

controls, progress reporting, provides 

management assurance, ensuring 

compliance 

 

3rd Line of Defence 

Independent Assurance 
Independent challenge and audit, 

reporting assurance, audit opinion 

assurance levels 

Leader, Cabinet Members, Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer, Monitoring Officer, Corporate Management Team 
(Provides oversight of the 3 lines of defence assurance framework) 

Audit and Governance Committee  
(AGS Approval Committee) 

Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 

Operational Management and Staff 

Support 

Committee and Scrutiny Functions 

Senior Management Functions 

Quality Control Checks 

Risk Management 

Managing Performance and Data 

Quality 

Programme and Project Management 

Functional Compliance (Information 
Management, HR, Legal, Contract and 

Financial Management) 

Validate 

Internal Audit 

External Audit 

External Inspections 

Delivery of Service Business Plans Review Agencies 

Regulators 

P
age 7



8 
  

How has the Annual Governance Statement been prepared?  
 

In preparing the Annual Governance Statement the Council has: 

 reviewed the Council’s existing governance arrangements against the revised CIPFA / SOLACE ‘Delivering Good Governance in 

Local Government framework - 2016 Edition’ good practice guidance; 

 updated the Council’s Local Code of Corporate Governance to reflect this guidance which includes the revised seven principles of 

good governance and associated required actions and behaviours taken by the Council that demonstrate good governance; and 

 assessed the effectiveness of the Council’s governance arrangements against the revised Local Code of Corporate Governance. 

How does the Council monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of 

its governance arrangements? 
 

The Council annually reviews the effectiveness of its governance arrangements. The key sources of assurance that inform this review are 

outlined below: 

 The development and implementation of a Member / Management governance assurance framework which enables the Council to 

gain assurance that good governance actions and behaviours are operating within the Council;  

 The work of Members and Senior Officers of the Council who have responsibility for good governance; 

 Internal Audit’s independent review of the effectiveness of the Local Government Pension Scheme’s governance arrangements, 

which includes the administration of the pension fund;  

 The Chief Internal Auditor’s annual report 2016/2017, which provides the independent assurance that key risks (financial and non-

financial) are being adequately controlled and provides an opinion on the effectiveness of these arrangements; 

 The annual report on Risk Management Activity 2016/2017; and 

 Any comments made by the Council’s External Auditors and any other review agencies and inspectorates.   

P
age 8



9 
  

What are the key elements of GCC’s Governance Framework? 
 

The Council aims to achieve good standards of governance by adhering to the seven core principles below, which form the basis of the 

Council’s Code of Corporate Governance:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The following pages provide a summary of actions and 

behaviours taken by the Council in relation to each of 

these seven core principles and associated sub 

principles.  

A. Behaving with integrity, 

demonstrating strong 

commitment to ethical values, 

and respecting the rule of law 

 

B. Ensuring openness and 

comprehensive stakeholder 

engagement 

 

C. Defining outcomes in terms 

of sustainable economic, social 

and environmental benefits 

D. Determining the 

interventions 

necessary to optimise 

the achievement of the 

intended outcomes 

E. Developing the 

entity’s capacity, 

including the capability 

of its leadership and 

the individuals within it 

F. Managing risks and 

performance through 

robust internal control 

and strong public 

financial management 

G. Implementing good practices 

in transparency, reporting, and 

audit to deliver effective 

accountability 

P
age 9



10 
  

Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule 

of law 

Principle A 

 

 
 
Supporting Principles:  

 

 

How we do this:  

  

Behaving with integrity Demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values 
Respecting the Rule of Law 

 The Council has an Audit and 

Governance Committee to promote 

high standards of member conduct. 

Elected members must follow a 

Code of Conduct to ensure high 

standards in the way they 

undertake their duties. The 

Monitoring Officer advises 

members on the Code of Conduct. 

 Officer behaviour is governed by 

the Employees’ Code of Conduct. 

The Code has been formulated to 

provide a set of standards of 

conduct expected of employees at 

work. 

 External providers of services 

acting on behalf of the Council are 

also required to comply with the 

Code of Conduct. 

 These Codes are regularly 

reviewed to ensure they are 

operating effectively. 

 Arrangements exist to ensure that 

members and officers are not 

influenced by prejudice, bias or 

conflicts of interest in dealing with 

different stakeholders. These 

include: 

o Registers of disclosable conflicts 

of interests; 

o Declarations of disclosable 

conflicts of interests and 

disclosable other interests at the 

start of meetings; and 

o Registers of gifts and hospitality. 

 A corporate complaints procedure 

exists to receive and respond to 

any complaints received. 

 Actively seek to deter and prevent 

fraud and corruption and ensure 

where irregularity is suspected that 

it is thoroughly investigated. 

 The required leadership and staff 

‘behaviours’ are embedded into 

performance appraisals. 

 The Constitution sets out the 

responsibilities of the Council, the 

Cabinet, Scrutiny and other 

Committees, as well as officers, 

including decision making powers. 

 The Council has a duty to appoint 

three of its staff to specific roles, 

these being: 

 -The Head of Paid Service (Chief 

Executive), who has overall 

accountability for the governance 

arrangements operating within the 

Council.   

 - The Monitoring Officer who has a 

key role in ensuring that decisions 

taken by the Council are within the 

law and the Council complies with 

the provisions of its Constitution. 

- The Chief Financial Officer is the 

principal financial adviser to the 

Council and is responsible for the 

proper administration of the 

Council’s financial affairs and 

internal control environment. 

P
age 10

http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=655&Year=0
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=655&Year=0
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/2859/gcc_code_of_member_conduct-53987.pdf
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/complaints-and-feedback/comment-complaint-or-compliment/
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD466&ID=466&sch=doc
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=333
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=117


11 
  

Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement 

Principle B 

 

 
Supporting Principles:  

 

 

How we do this:  

 

 

  

Openness 
Engaging comprehensively with 

institutional stakeholders 

Engaging stakeholders effectively, 

including individual citizens and 

service users 

 

 Progress against the Council 

Strategy is monitored on a 

quarterly basis through strategic 

performance / financial / risk 

reports to the Cabinet and Scrutiny 

Committees, which are publicly 

available. 

 Cabinet Member decisions and 

significant officer decisions are also 

reported on the Council’s website. 

 The Council publishes an annual 

report on the activity of the Scrutiny 

function.  

 The Council publishes certain data 

in accordance with the Local 

Government Transparency Code 

which enables more power to be 

placed into citizens’ hands to 

increase democratic accountability 

and make it easier for local people 

to contribute to the local decision 

making process and help shape 

public services.  

 Elected members are 

democratically accountable to their 

local area and this provides a clear 

leadership role in building 

sustainable communities. 

 The Council's planning and 

decision-making processes are 

designed to include consultation 

with stakeholders and the 

submission of views by local 

people. 

 Developed and implemented 

alternative service delivery models 

to allow for resources to be used 

more efficiently and effectively. 

 The long-term vision for the Council is 

set out in the Council Strategy which 

is updated annually and informed by 

public consultation.  

 Call-in is for Cabinet decisions or 

decisions by the Leader or a Cabinet 

Member and a key decision taken by 

Officers under delegated powers. This 

allows an opportunity for further 

consideration of the issue before 

implemented. 

 Formal Public Consultation 

arrangements and public meetings 

held to ascertain stakeholder views 

prior to developing and implementing 

key policy changes. 

 Consult Gloucestershire: The People's 

Panel has been set up which is made 

up of Gloucestershire residents from 

all different backgrounds. Members of 

the panel are asked to give their views 

about Council services and issues 

affecting Gloucestershire. 

 This could be via online and 
postal surveys or local 

P
age 11

http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/corporate-plans-and-strategies/the-council-strategy-2015-18/
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/corporate-plans-and-strategies/the-council-strategy-2015-18/
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s36370/Item%209%20-%20Strategic%20Performance%20Report%20Q3%202016-17.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s36370/Item%209%20-%20Strategic%20Performance%20Report%20Q3%202016-17.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s36370/Item%209%20-%20Strategic%20Performance%20Report%20Q3%202016-17.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx?bcr=1&DM=3
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s34681/Annual%20Scrutiny%20Report%202016.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s34681/Annual%20Scrutiny%20Report%202016.pdf
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/transparency/
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/consultations/
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/consultations/consult-gloucestershire-the-peoples-panel/
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/consultations/consult-gloucestershire-the-peoples-panel/


12 
  

Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable, economic, social and environmental benefits 

Principle C 

 

 

Supporting Principles:  

 

 

How we do this:  

  

 

Defining outcomes Sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits 

 The long term vision and Council’s priorities are set out 

in the Council Strategy. 

 A Budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy, Capital 

Programme and annual budget process ensure that 

financial resources are directed to the Council’s 

priorities. 

 The Council works with partner organisations where 

there are shared objectives and clear economic benefits 

from joint working.  

 The Council has a co-ordinated and structured approach 

to commissioning services and defining outcomes. 

 Contract management and monitoring arrangements are 

in place to ensure that services provided are delivered to 

a high standard. 

 The Council’s corporate planning, performance and risk 

framework reports progress against business objectives 

and targets. These are reported and monitored by the 

Corporate Management Team, Overview and Scrutiny 

Management Committee and Cabinet.   

 

 An Efficiency Programme identifies and implements 

efficiency savings across the organisation in a 

systematic and considered manner. 

 The Council aims to ensure that the purchase or 

commissioning of goods, services or works required to 

deliver services is acquired under Best Value terms. 

 The Council has developed business continuity plans to 

ensure that critical service delivery can be maintained or 

recovered during an emergency. 

 The Council’s decision making process requires 

consideration of the economic, social and environmental 

impacts of policies and plans when taking decisions 

about service provision. In addition a sustainability 

check list is also included to ensure sustainability is also 

fully considered. 

 Programme and project management arrangements 

require consideration of Political, Environmental, 

Societal (i.e. increased demand for a service and 

demographic changes), technological, legislative, 

economic and efficiency issues, risks and opportunities 

and value for money. 

P
age 12

http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/budget-and-medium-term-financial-strategy/


13 
  

Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes 

Principle D 

 

 
Supporting Principles:  

 

 

How we do this:  

  

Determining interventions Planning interventions Optimising achievement of intended 

outcomes 

 The Council’s decision making 

process ensures that decision 

makers receive objective and 

robust analysis of a variety of 

options indicating how the intended 

outcomes will be achieved, 

providing information on the risks 

and opportunities associated with 

those options, thus helping to 

inform those decisions. 

 Public consultation is undertaken to 

ensure that feedback from citizens 

and service users are fully 

considered when making decisions 

about service improvements / 

changes.  

 The Council Strategy defines the 

Council’s key priorities and plans, 

following full consultation with the 

communities of Gloucestershire.  

 The Council has developed 

Strategic Commissioning Plans, 

Service Level Agreements, 

Outcome Agreements and Annual 

Business Plans with clearly defined 

outcomes and a balanced set of 

measures and risks to evaluate 

performance. 

 Quarterly performance reports 

analysing trends and latest budget 

position are monitored by Cabinet 

and Scrutiny Committees and 

mitigation strategies are 

implemented to manage current 

and emerging risks. 

 The Council has developed and 

implemented a Budget and Medium 

Term Financial Strategy. 

 The financial plans demonstrate 

how the Council’s financial 

resources will be deployed over the 

next three years to deliver declared 

aims and priorities.  

 The strategy sets out the overall 

shape of the Council’s budget by 

determining the level of resources 

that will be available and how these 

are currently allocated between 

services.  

 The Council ensures the 

achievement of ‘social value’ (i.e. a 

way of thinking about how scarce 

resources are allocated and used 

when awarding a contract) when 

commissioning services and 

service planning. 

P
age 13



14 
  

Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it 

Principle E 

 

 
Supporting Principles:  

 

 

How we do this:  

 

 

 

  

Developing the Council’s capacity Developing the capability of the Council’s leadership and 

other individuals 

 The Council participates in relevant benchmarking 

exercises and peer reviews to help inform how the 

resources are allocated, so that outcomes can be 

achieved effectively and efficiently. 

 Collaborative working and alternative service delivery 

models are fully considered as part of the option 

appraisal process, when looking to determine how the 

Council’s resources are allocated in order to meet our 

priorities.   

 The Council has developed and implemented an 

organisational and workforce strategy.  

 The Council has an Occupational Health Service that 

offers health assessments, health screening, health and 

well-being advice, ill health retirement advice, 

rehabilitation advice and advises managers on health 

related performance or attendance issues and an 

Employee Assistance programme which provides staff 

counselling and advice. 

 Implementation of the Aspiring Leaders Network 

Programme which enables the development of our 

future leaders. 

 

 

 The Council’s Constitution clearly defines the statutory 

and distinctive leadership roles of the Leader of the 

Council and the Chief Executive, whereby the Chief 

Executive leads on implementing strategy and managing 

the delivery of services and other requirements set by 

members. 

 A Members Development Programme is in operation, 

which supports continued Member development. This 

includes six key skills needed to be an effective 

councillor, namely local leadership, partnership working, 

communication, political understanding, scrutiny and 

challenge and regulation and monitoring skills. 

 The Council’s Performance Development Review is a 

1:1 meeting for all leaders and employees. It is an 

opportunity to reflect on how the individual is performing, 

what is going well and also where the individual may 

need further support or development as part of their role.  

 The above includes leadership skills and behaviours as 

these behaviours are essential for the delivery of our key 

priorities, to continue to support our savings targets, and 

form part of our on-going commitment to personal and 

professional development.  

P
age 14



15 
  

Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial management 

Principle F 

 

Supporting Principles:  

 

How we do this:  

 

 

  

Managing Risk 

Managing Performance 

 The Council has a Risk 

Management Policy / 

Strategy which clearly 

defines the roles and 

responsibilities for 

managing risk, 

confirming that risk 

management is an 

integral part of all our 

business activities 

including all aspects of 

business planning, 

option appraisals and 

decision making. 

 Business Continuity 

arrangements are in 

place for critical 

services to ensure they 

can continue to operate 

in an emergency. 

 The Audit and 

Governance Committee 

monitor the adequacy 

of the risk identification, 

monitoring and control 

of strategic and 

operational risk within 

the Council. 

 The Council Strategy 

outlines our priorities 

which are built on three 

clear values i.e. living 

within our means, doing 

the right things and 

helping communities to 

help themselves. 

 A business planning 

framework is in operation 

which includes our 

Strategic Commissioning 

Plan which sets out our 

strategic commissioning 

priorities and annual 

business plans which set 

out the key priorities/ 

tasks / targets / risks for 

the day job.  

 Priorities are monitored 

through our programme 

and project management 

framework and overseen 

by, and reported to, the 

Overview and Scrutiny 

Management Committee 

and Cabinet. 

Robust internal control Strong public financial 

management 

 There is an Internal Audit 

(IA) service (100% 

compliant with Public 

Sector Internal Audit 

Standards). Whilst 

improvement areas have 

arisen during the year 

from IA activity, action 

plans have been agreed 

with management to 

address them. On this 

basis, with the exception 

of the matters relating to 

Children’s Services, the 

Chief Internal Auditor’s 

opinion is that the 

Council’s control 

environment provides 

satisfactory assurance 

that the significant risks 

facing the Council are 

being addressed. 

 The Council takes fraud, 

corruption and 

maladministration very 

seriously and has 

established policies and 

processes which aim to 

prevent or deal with such 

occurrences. Anti Fraud 

and Corruption Policy 

and Strategy. 

Managing Data 

 Data is managed in 

accordance with the law. 

The key information 

management and 

security policies in place 

are: The Data Protection 

Policy, Freedom of 

Information Policy, 

Information Security 

Policy and the overall 

Information Strategy. 

 Information Sharing 

protocols are in place 

when sharing data with 

third parties. 

 Strategy ownership rests 

with Information Board 

members who are 

responsible for agreeing, 

monitoring, promoting 

and reviewing its 

implementation.  

 Monitoring also includes 

reports to Audit and 

Governance Committee, 

internal / external audits  

and Information 

Commissioner reviews as 

appropriate. 

 Robust budget 

management 

arrangements are in 

place including 

monitoring and review by 

the Overview and 

Scrutiny Management 

Committee and Cabinet. 

 External Audit review 

and report on the 

Council’s financial 

statements (including this 

Annual Governance 

Statement), providing an 

opinion on the accounts 

and concluding on the 

arrangements in place 

for securing economy, 

efficiency and 

effectiveness in the use 

of resources (the value 

for money conclusion). 

 The Audit and 

Governance Committee 

monitor the effectiveness 

of the Chief Financial 

Officer’s responsibility for 

ensuring an adequate 

internal / financial control 

environment. 

P
age 15

http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s34955/Risk%20Management%20Policy%20and%20Strategy%202017-18%20FINAL.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s34955/Risk%20Management%20Policy%20and%20Strategy%202017-18%20FINAL.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s34955/Risk%20Management%20Policy%20and%20Strategy%202017-18%20FINAL.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35167/Anti%20Fraud%20Policy-%20Strategy%20-%202017%20-%202019%20v7-3.pdfhttp:/glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35167/Anti%20Fraud%20Policy-%20Strategy%20-%202017%20-%202019%20v7-3.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35167/Anti%20Fraud%20Policy-%20Strategy%20-%202017%20-%202019%20v7-3.pdfhttp:/glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35167/Anti%20Fraud%20Policy-%20Strategy%20-%202017%20-%202019%20v7-3.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35167/Anti%20Fraud%20Policy-%20Strategy%20-%202017%20-%202019%20v7-3.pdfhttp:/glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35167/Anti%20Fraud%20Policy-%20Strategy%20-%202017%20-%202019%20v7-3.pdf
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/strategies-plans-policies/information-management-and-security-policies/
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/strategies-plans-policies/information-management-and-security-policies/
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/strategies-plans-policies/information-management-and-security-policies/
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35269/Annual%20Audit%20Letter%20-Gloucestershire%20County%20Council%202015-16%20final.pdf


16 
  

Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective accountability 

Principle G 

 

 
Supporting Principles:  

 

 

 

How we do this:  

  

Implementing good practices in 

transparency 

Implementing good practices in 

reporting 

Assurance and effective 

accountability 

 Agendas and minutes of Cabinet and 

Committee meetings including Scrutiny 

are publically available on the Council’s 

website. 

 The Council has a Freedom of 

Information Act publication scheme (to 

ensure the members of the public have 

access to all recorded information held 

by the Council.  

 Compliance with the Local Government 

Data Transparency Code which sets out 

the minimum data that the Council 

should be publishing, the frequency it 

should be published and how it should 

be published e.g. expenditure exceeding 

£500, grants to voluntary, community 

and social enterprise organisations, 

senior salaries etc. This makes it easier 

for local people to contribute to the local 

decision making processes and help to 

shape public services. 

 The published Annual Statement of 

Accounts is the statutory summary of the 

Council's financial affairs for the financial 

year. The purpose of the Annual 

Statement of Accounts is to give clear 

information on the income and 

expenditure of the Council and to 

demonstrate the Council's stewardship 

of public money for the year. 

 The Council publishes an Annual 

Governance Statement in order to report 

how we have monitored the 

effectiveness of our governance 

arrangements (self assessed against the 

seven key principles set out within our 

Code of Corporate Governance) in year 

and on any planned changes in the 

coming year. 

 The Audit and Governance Committee 

review and approve the Annual 

Statement of Accounts and Annual 

Governance Statement. 

 

 Accountability and decision making 

arrangements are clearly defined within 

the Council’s Constitution. These 

accountabilities include arrangements 

when delivering services with our key 

partners. 

 The Audit and Governance Committee 

provide independent assurance to the 

Council on the adequacy and 

effectiveness of the governance 

arrangements and internal control 

environment operating within the 

Council.  

 Risk based internal auditing provides 

ongoing assurance that the key risks 

material to achieving the Council’s 

objectives are being managed. 

 Peer reviews and benchmarking 

undertaken to ascertain good practice 

and implement improvements as 

identified. 

 

P
age 16

http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/freedom-of-information/
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/freedom-of-information/


17 
  

What are the key roles of those responsible for developing and 

maintaining the Governance Framework? 

 

 

 

  

 

The Council 
- Approves the Council Strategy. 

- Approves the Constitution (including Standing Orders and Financial Regulations). 

- Approves key policies and budgetary framework. 

 
 

Cabinet 
- The main decision-making body of the Council.  

- Comprises nine Cabinet Members (including the Leader) who have responsibility for particular portfolios.  

 
 

Audit and Governance 

Committee 

- Provides independent assurance to the Council on the adequacy and effectiveness of the governance arrangements, risk management 
framework and internal control environment.  

- Promotes high standards of member conduct. 
- Approves the Annual Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement. 

Scrutiny Committees - There are five Scrutiny Committees aligned to the Council’s corporate priorities. 
-  They hold Cabinet and Officers to account and scrutinise performance. 

 Chief Executive  

Corporate Management Team 

- Implements the policy and budgetary framework set by the Council and provides advice to Cabinet and the Council on the development 
of future policy and budgetary issues. 

- Oversees the implementation of council policy. 

 

 

Internal Audit 

- Provides independent assurance and annual opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s governance, risk management 
and control framework. 

- Delivers an annual programme of risk based audit activity, including counter fraud and investigation activity.  

- Makes recommendations for improvements in the management of risk. 

 

Managers 
- Responsible for developing, maintaining and implementing the Council’s governance, risk and control framework.  

- Contribute to the effective corporate management and governance of the Council. 

 

 

Chief Financial Officer (s151) - Accountability for developing and maintaining the Council’s governance, risk and control framework. 
- Contribute to the effective corporate management and governance of the Council. 

 

Monitoring Officer 

- To report on contraventions or likely contraventions of any enactment or rule of law. To report on any maladministration or injustice 
where the Local Government Ombudsman has carried out an investigation. To establish and maintain registers of member interests and 
gifts and hospitality. To advise Members on the interpretation of the Code of Conduct for Members and Co-opted Members. 

- Overall responsibility for the maintenance and operation of the Confidential Reporting Procedure for Employees. (Whistleblowing) and 
contributes to the effective corporate management and governance of the Council.  

 

External Audit 

- Audit / review and report on the Council’s financial statements (including the Annual Governance Statement), providing an opinion on the 

accounts and use of resources, concluding on the arrangements in place for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of 

resources (the value for money conclusion). 

-   

 

P
age 17



18 
  

How has the Council addressed the governance improvement 

actions from 2015/16?  
 

The Annual Governance Statement 2015/16 contained the following key improvement actions. Details of the issue and how it was addressed 

are provided below: 

Review 

Reference 

Governance Requirement / Improvement Actions Target 
Date 

Progress as at March 2017 

Annual 

Governance 

Statement 

2015/2016 

Page 35 

 

 

Governance in working with others – Alternative Service Delivery 

Models. The County Council is required to: Ensure that 

Partnerships/Contracts are underpinned by a common vision of their 

work that is understood and agreed by all Partners. 

 

Actions: The Council will continue to ensure that there is a high level 

of awareness of the need and importance of good contract and 

relationship management as part of its risk management approach. 

 

Necessary consideration of contract and risk management will be 

embedded at all stages, including options appraisal, business case, 

tendering and through the life of the contract. 

 

Support services will provide the necessary contract support to 

managers through systems, information, guidance and training and 

ensure that they are working effectively. 

Ongoing There continues to be close working 

relationships between Commercial Services, 

Risk Management and Legal Services, in 

particular in relation to the Meeting the 

Challenge savings programmes and projects, 

contract renewals, option appraisals and 

embedding good contract and risk 

management processes across the Authority.  

 

Commercial Services have recently facilitated 

staff workshops on Risk Management, 

Supplier Failure and Business Continuity, as 

part of their ongoing contract management 

arrangements. Similar workshops will 

continue into 2017/2018. 

P
age 18



19 
  

Review 

Reference 

Governance Requirement / Improvement Actions Target 
Date 

Progress as at March 2017 

Revised 

CIPFA 

Guidance 

on 

Delivering 

Good 

Governance 

2016 

CIPFA - Delivering Good Governance in Local Government : 

Framework (2016 Edition): The Council currently prepares and 

publishes an Annual Governance Statement in accordance with the 

CIPFA Delivering Good Governance in Local Government 2007 

(Addendum 2012).  

 

This guidance/framework has been refreshed and defines the principles 

that should underpin the governance arrangements of the Council and 

applies to the annual governance statements prepared for the financial 

year 2016/2017 onwards. 

 

Action: The Chief Internal Auditor to test the Council’s governance 

arrangements and be able to demonstrate that its governance 

structures comply with the core and sub principles contained within the 

revised framework. To then develop and maintain, on behalf of the 

Council, a local code of governance / governance arrangements 

reflecting the principles set out.  

 

 

 

 

31st 

March 

2017 

Completed 

 

The Council’s revised Local Code of 

Corporate Governance, Annual Governance 

Statement and the associated assurance 

framework has been developed by the Chief 

Internal Auditor, which is in accordance with 

the principles contained within the CIPFA 

guidance i.e. Delivering Good Governance in 

Local Government 2016 Edition.  

 

The revised governance assurance 

framework applied to the Annual Governance 

Statement 2016/2017.  

P
age 19



20 
  

Review 

Reference 

Governance Requirement / Improvement Actions Target 
Date 

Progress as at March 2017 

Local Code 

of 

Corporate 

Governance 

2015/2016 

Core 

Principle 3  

Anti Fraud and Corruption Strategy: The Council is required to 

promote values for the Authority and demonstrate the values of good 

governance through upholding high standards of conduct and 

behaviour. 

 

The Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally 2016–2019 strategy has 

been developed by local authorities and counter fraud experts and 

supported by the CIPFA Counter Fraud Centre. 

It is the definitive guide for council leaders, chief executives, finance 

directors and all those with governance responsibilities. The strategy 

includes practical steps for fighting fraud, shares best practice and 

brings clarity to the changing anti-fraud and corruption landscape. 

 

Action: The Chief Internal Auditor will undertake a self assessment 

against the new guidance to measure the Council’s counter fraud and 

corruption culture and response and propose enhancements as 

required. 

31st 

March 

2017 

Completed 

 

A self assessment against the new counter 

fraud guidance has been undertaken by the 

Chief Internal Auditor, which has resulted in a 

refreshed Anti Fraud and Corruption Policy 

Statement and Strategy, Anti Bribery Policy 

and Anti Money Laundering Policy 2017 – 

2019.  

 

Following Corporate Management Team 

approval, the revised policies were presented 

to the Audit and Governance Committee on 

20th January 2017 and subsequently 

approved by the Cabinet Member: Finance 

and Change in February 2017.  

 

Promoted Anti Fraud and Corruption across 

the Council as part of the National Fraud 

Awareness week 13th – 19th November 2016. 

 

 

 
  

P
age 20



21 
  

What are the key 2016/17 Governance matters identified?  
 

The review of the effectiveness of the Council’s governance framework has identified the following actions that will need to be addressed 

during 2017/18. 

 

Review 

Reference 

Governance matters identified/actions taken 
Target Date Lead Officer 

Financial 

Governance 

Future Financial Sustainability  

The Council identified savings of £35.3m as part of the 2017/2018 budget 

setting process. Delivery of this level of savings will be challenging for the 

Council. A contingency has been set aside in case this is not fully delivered in 

2017/2018, although the Council recognises this is not a long term solution. 

 

Actions: To continue to review the arrangements for updating, agreeing and 

monitoring the Medium Term Financial Strategy. Specifically focusing on the 

robustness of the financial planning assumptions and arrangements for 

ensuring the financial projections including future savings are realistic and 

achievable. 

 

31st March 2018 

 
Chief Financial Officer 

Safeguarding 

Inspection 

Ofsted Inspection of Children’s Services:  

 

Gloucestershire County Council services for children in need of help and 

protection, children looked after and care leavers were inspected by Ofsted 

between 27th February to 23rd March 2017. There was also a separate 

inspection of the Local Safeguarding Children Board. The Council has 

recently received our final report from Ofsted.  

 

 
New Leadership 

team in place: 

15th May 2017 

 

First 

improvement 

Board: July 2017 

Interim Director of Children’s 

Services 

P
age 21



22 
  

Review 

Reference 

Governance matters identified/actions taken 
Target Date Lead Officer 

There are examples of some good work that should be acknowledged and 

celebrated, e.g. the adoption service that has been graded as ‘good’ and 

inspectors found an improving picture for children in care and care leavers. 

However, there are substantial challenges in safeguarding and child 

protection practice and leadership and management and these areas were 

graded ‘inadequate’ – this means that the overall judgement is inadequate.  

 

The Council has accepted the judgements and the recommendations and 

apologised for not protecting vulnerable children and their families effectively.  

 

Actions: Immediate action has been taken. A new leadership team is in place 

in Children’s Services to drive forward improvement. A review has been 

undertaken of work with those children most at risk identified through the 

inspection to ensure they are adequately protected.  

 
The council is required to produce an action plan for Ofsted within 70 days of 

the report’s publication and the DfE will be overseeing improvement. A DfE 

Advisor has already been appointed and will chair an Improvement Board that 

includes the Leader, Lead Cabinet Member and senior officers.  

 

The Local Government Association will also provide advice and assistance 

and an advisor is already in place. 

 

 

Agreement and 

Submission of 

Improvement 

Plan: Sept 2017 

 

Ofsted Monitoring 

Visits: Quarterly 

from October 

2017 

 
 

P
age 22



23 
  

Review 

Reference 

Governance matters identified/actions taken 
Target Date Lead Officer 

National 

Policy 

Implications of the Policing and Crime Act (which makes provision for 

collaboration between police forces and fire and rescue services) impacting 

on the Fire and Rescue Service and the County Council.  
 

Actions: Research has been commissioned to look at the potential costs of 

transferring currently Council-run Fire and Rescue Services to the control of 

Police and Crime Commissioners (PCCs). The Office of the Police and Crime 

Commissioner (OPCC) has commissioned a separate report which may 

influence the future direction. 

 

Ongoing Chief Fire Officer 

P
age 23



24 
  

Review 

Reference 

Governance matters identified/actions taken 
Target Date Lead Officer 

Director’s 

Assurance 

Statements 

Contracting / Commissioning Care Services  

Cleeve Link, one of the Council’s home care providers, and 4Children one of 

the Council’s children’s support providers closed during 2016/207. The 

Council has now arranged for partners to maintain domiciliary care support 

and there is a new provider for children’s centres.  

 

Actions: The Council has considered lessons learned from the closure of 

both 4Children and Cleeve Link and are using the findings to improve its long 

term planning and market management arrangements to avoid such situations 

occurring in the future and to up skill officers in these areas.  

 

Childrens Centres 

With effect from April 2017 a new Children’s Centre contract is in place with 

revised contract monitoring arrangements. 

 

Domiciliary Care 

Although the manner of the closure of Cleeve Link was highly unusual, the 

lessons learned from it and the subsequent activity to arrange alternative 

provision will be used to shape the Council’s longer term approach to the 

development of capacity and stability in the domiciliary care market in the 

County. 

 

 

Completed 

31st March 2017 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

Director of Adult Social Care 

and Director of Childrens 

Services 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Director of Childrens 

Services 

 

 

Director of Adult Services 

 

  

P
age 24



25 
  

Certification 

 
To the best of our knowledge, the governance arrangements, as defined above and within the Council’s Code of Corporate Governance, 

have been effectively operating during the year with the exception of those areas identified on pages 21 - 24 above. We propose over the 

coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further enhance our governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps 

will address the need for improvements that were identified in our review of effectiveness and will monitor their implementation and operation 

during the year and as part of our next annual review. 

 

Signed: 

 

 

 

Date: 

 

 

 

 

 

GLOUCESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 

P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

1 

 December 2016 

Code of Corporate 

Corporate 

 
 

Governance 
2016-2017 
 

Page 27



 

 

2 

 

 

Contents 
 

Contents ................................................................................................................................ 2 

Introduction ............................................................................................................................ 3 

What do we mean by Governance? ....................................................................................... 3 

Core Principles ...................................................................................................................... 3 

Appendix A - Actions and behaviours taken by the Council that demonstrate good 

governance. ........................................................................................................................... 4 

Appendix B - Gloucestershire County Council’s Corporate Governance Framework ............ 8 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 28



 

 

3 

 

Introduction 
 

The Council’s Code of Corporate Governance is based upon the CIPFA / SOLACE 

publication entitled “Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework 2016 

Edition.” 

 

What do we mean by Governance? 
 

‘The International Framework: Good Governance in the Public Sector’ defines ‘governance’ 

as comprising the arrangements (including political, economic, social, environmental, 

administrative, legal and other arrangements) put in place to ensure that the intended 

outcomes for stakeholders are defined and achieved. The Framework also states that to 

deliver good governance in the public sector both governing bodies and individuals working 

for them must aim to achieve the Council’s objectives while acting in the public interest at all 

times. 

 

Core Principles 
 

The Council’s Code of Corporate Governance is based on seven core principles:- 

A. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and 

respecting the rule of law; 
 

B. Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement; 
 

C. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental 

benefits; 
 

D. Determining the interventions necessary to optimize the achievement of the intended 

outcomes; 
 

E. Developing the County Council’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership 

and the individuals within it; 
 

F. Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public 

financial management; and 
 

G. Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective 

accountability. 

The Code specifically identifies the actions and behaviours taken by the Council in relation 

to each of these core principles and associated sub principles. The Code, along with its 

supporting infrastructure is set out below at Appendix A and is summarised in diagrammatic 

form in Appendix B. 

The Audit and Governance Committee is currently responsible for approving this Code and 

ensuring it is annually reviewed and updated accordingly. 

Page 29



 

 

4 

 

Appendix A - Actions and behaviours taken by the Council that demonstrate good governance.  
 

 

Principle 
Sub 

Principles 
Council Actions and Behaviours 

(A
) B

e
h

a
v

in
g

 w
it

h
 i
n

te
g

ri
ty

, 
d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
ti

n
g

 s
tr

o
n

g
  

C
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
to

 e
th

ic
a

l 
v
a

lu
e

s
, 

a
n

d
 r

e
s

p
e
c
ti

n
g

 t
h

e
 

ru
le

 o
f 

la
w

 

B
e
h

a
v

in
g

 w
it

h
 

in
te

g
ri

ty
 

 Ensure that Members and Officers behave with integrity and lead a culture where acting in the public interest is visible and consistently demonstrated thereby protecting 

the reputation of the Council; 

 Ensure that Members take the lead in establishing specific standard operating principles or values for the Council and its staff and that they are communicated and 

understood. These will build on the Seven Principles of Public Life (The Nolan Principles); 

 Lead by example and use the above standard operating principles or values as a framework for decision making and other actions; and 

 Demonstrate, communicate and embed the standard operating principles or values through appropriate policies and processes which will be reviewed on a regular basis 

to ensure they are operating effectively. 

D
e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
ti

n
g

 

s
tr

o
n

g
 

c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
to

 

e
th

ic
a

l 
v

a
lu

e
s

  Seek to establish, monitor and maintain the Council’s ethical standards and performance; 

 Underpin personal behaviour with ethical values and ensure they permeate all aspects of the Council’s culture and operation; 

 Develop and maintain robust policies and procedures which place emphasis on agreed ethical values; and 

 Ensure that external providers of services on behalf of the organisation are required to act with integrity and in compliance with ethical standards expected by the 

Council.  

R
e
s

p
e
c

ti
n

g
 

th
e

 R
u

le
 o

f 

L
a
w

 

 Ensure Members and staff demonstrate a strong commitment to the rule of the law as well as adhering to relevant laws and regulations;  

 Create the conditions to ensure that the statutory officers, other key post holders, and Members are able to fulfil their responsibilities in accordance with legislative and 

regulatory provisions; 

 Strive to optimise the use of the full powers available for the benefit of citizens, communities and other stakeholders; 

 Deal with breaches of legal and regulatory provisions effectively; and 

 Ensure corruption and misuse of power is dealt with effectively. 

(B
) E

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 o

p
e

n
n

e
s

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 s

ta
k

e
h

o
ld

e
r 

e
n

g
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

O
p

e
n

n
e
s

s
 

 

 Ensure an open culture through demonstrating, documenting and communicating the Council’s commitment to openness; 

 Make decisions that are open about actions, plans, resource use, forecasts, outputs and outcomes. The presumption will be for openness. If that is not the case, a 

justification for the reasoning for keeping a decision confidential will be provided;  

 Provide clear reasoning and evidence for decisions in both public records and explanations to stakeholders and will be explicit about the criteria, rationale and 

considerations used. In due course, the Council will ensure that the impact and consequences of those decisions are clear; and 

 Use formal and informal consultation and engagement to determine the most appropriate and effective interventions / courses of action. 

E
n

g
a
g

in
g

 

c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
ly

 

w
it

h
 i

n
s
ti

tu
ti

o
n

a
l 

s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
  Effectively engage with institutional stakeholders to ensure that the purpose, objectives and intended outcomes for each stakeholder relationship are clear so that 

outcomes are achieved successfully and sustainably; 

 Develop formal and informal partnerships to allow for resources to be used more efficiently and outcomes achieved more effectively; and 

 Ensure that partnerships are based on trust, a shared commitment to change, a culture that promotes and accepts challenge among partners and that the added value of 

partnership working is explicit. 

E
n

g
a
g

in
g

 s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e
rs

 

e
ff

e
c

ti
v

e
ly

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
c

it
iz

e
n

s
 a

n
d

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 

 Establish a clear policy on the type of issues that the Council will meaningfully consult with or involve communities, individual citizens, service users and other 

stakeholders to ensure that service (or other) provision is contributing towards the achievement of intended outcomes; 

 Ensure that communication methods are effective and that Members and Officers are clear about their roles with regard to community engagement; 

 Encourage, collect and evaluate the views and experiences of communities, citizens, service users and organisations of different backgrounds including reference to 

future needs; 

 Implement effective feedback mechanisms in order to demonstrate how their views have been taken into account; 

 Balance feedback from more active stakeholder groups with other stakeholder groups to ensure inclusivity; and 

 Take account of the interests of future generations of tax payers and service users. 

P
age 30



 

 

5 

 

 

Principle 
Sub 

Principles 
Council Actions and Behaviours 

( 
C

) 
D

e
fi

n
in

g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s

 i
n

 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 e
c

o
n

o
m

ic
, 

s
o

c
ia

l 
a

n
d

 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 

D
e
fi

n
in

g
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 

 

 Have a clear vision, which is an agreed formal statement of the Council’s purpose and intended outcomes containing appropriate performance indicators, which provides 

the basis for the Council’s overall strategy, planning and other decisions; 

 Specify the intended impact on, or changes for, stakeholders including citizens and service users. It could be immediately or over the course of a year or longer; 

 Deliver defined outcomes on a sustainable basis within the resources that will be available; 

 Identify and manage risks to the achievement of outcomes; and 

 Manage service users’ expectations effectively with regard to determining priorities and making the best use of the resources available.  

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 

e
c

o
n

o
m

ic
, 
s

o
c
ia

l 

a
n

d
 e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 

b
e
n

e
fi

ts
 

 Consider and balance the combined economic, social and environmental impact of policies, plans and decisions when taking decisions about service provision; 

 Take a longer- term view with regard to decision making, taking account of risk and acting transparently where there are potential conflicts between the Council’s 

intended outcomes and short-term factors such as the political cycle or financial constraints; 

 Determine the wider public interest associated with balancing conflicting interests between achieving the various economic, social and environmental benefits, through 

consultation where possible, in order to ensure appropriate trade-offs; and 

 Ensure fair access to services. 

(D
) D

e
te

rm
in

in
g

 t
h

e
 i

n
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

s
 n

e
c

e
s
s

a
ry

 t
o

 o
p

ti
m

is
e

 

th
e

 a
c

h
ie

v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 i
n

te
n

d
e
d

 o
u

tc
o

m
e
s

 

D
e
te

rm
in

in
g

 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

s
 

 

 Ensure decision makers receive objective and rigorous analysis of a variety of options indicating how intended outcomes would be achieved and including the risks 

associated with those options. Therefore ensuring best value is achieved however services are provided; and 

 Consider feedback from citizens and service users when making decisions about service improvements or where services are no longer required in order to prioritise 

competing demands within limited resources available including people, skills, land and assets and bearing in mind future impacts. 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s

 

 Establish and implement robust planning and control cycles that cover strategic and operational plans, priorities and targets; 

 Engage with internal and external stakeholders in determining how services and other courses of action should be planned and delivered; 

 Consider and monitor risks facing each partner when working collaboratively including shared risks; 

 Ensure arrangements are flexible and agile so that the mechanisms for delivering outputs can be adapted to changing circumstances; 

 Establish appropriate key performance indicators (KPIs) as part of the planning process in order to identify how the performance of services and projects is to be 

measured; 

 Ensure capacity exists to generate the information required to review service quality regularly; 

 Prepare budgets in accordance with organisational objectives, strategies and the medium term financial plan; and 

 Inform medium and long term resource planning by drawing up realistic estimates of revenue and capital expenditure aimed at developing a sustainable funding strategy. 

O
p

ti
m

is
in

g
 

a
c

h
ie

v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

in
te

n
d

e
d

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
  

 Ensure the medium term financial strategy integrates and balances service priorities, affordability and other resource constraints; 

 Ensure the budgeting process is all-inclusive, taking into account the full cost of operations over the medium and longer term; 

 Ensure the medium term financial strategy sets the context for ongoing decisions on significant delivery issues or responses to changes in the external environment that 

may arise during the budgetary period in order for outcomes to be achieved while optimising resource usage; and 

 Ensure the achievement of ‘social value’ through service planning and commissioning. The Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 states that this is “the additional 

benefit to the community…over and above the direct purchasing of goods, services and outcomes”. 

  

P
age 31



 

 

6 

 

  

Principle 
Sub 

Principles 
Council Actions and Behaviours 

(E
) 

D
e
v

e
lo

p
in

g
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 c

a
p

a
c

it
y
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 

c
a

p
a
b

il
it

y
 o

f 
it

s
 l
e

a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 w
it

h
in

 i
t 

D
e
v

e
lo

p
in

g
 

th
e

 

C
o

u
n

c
il

’s
 

c
a

p
a
c
it

y
  Review operations, performance use of assets on a regular basis to ensure their continuing effectiveness; 

 Improve resource use through appropriate application of techniques such as benchmarking and other options in order to determine how the Council’s resources are 

allocated so that outcomes are achieved effectively and efficiently; 

 Recognise the benefits of partnerships and collaborative working where added value can be achieved; and 

 Develop and maintain an effective workforce plan to enhance the strategic allocation of resources. 

D
e
v

e
lo

p
in

g
 t

h
e
 c

a
p

a
b

il
it

y
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
ty

 

C
o

u
n

c
il

’s
 l
e

a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 o

th
e
r 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
  Develop protocols to ensure that elected and appointed leaders negotiate with each other regarding their respective roles early on in the relationship and that a shared 

understanding of roles and objectives is maintained; 

 Publish a statement that specifies the types of decisions that are delegated and those reserved for the collective decision making of the governing body; 

 Ensure the Leader and the Chief Executive have clearly defined and distinctive leadership roles within a structure whereby the Chief Executive leads the Council in 

implementing strategy and managing the delivery of services and other outputs set by Members and each provides a check and a balance for each other’s authority; 

 Develop the capabilities of Members and senior management to achieve effective shared leadership and to enable the organisation to respond successfully to changing 

legal and policy demands as well as economic, political and environmental changes and risks by: 

 ensuring Members and staff have access to appropriate induction tailored to their role and that ongoing training and development matching individual and 

organisational requirements is available and encouraged; 

 ensuring Members and Officers have the appropriate skills, knowledge, resources and support to fulfil their roles and responsibilities and ensuring  that they are able 

to update their knowledge on a continuing basis; and 

 ensuring personal, organisational and system-wide development through shared learning, including lessons learnt from governance weaknesses both internal and 

external. 

 Ensure that there are structures in place to encourage public participation; 

 Take steps to consider the leadership’s own effectiveness and ensure leaders are open to constructive feedback from peer review and inspections; 

 Hold staff to account through regular performance reviews which take account of training or development needs; and 

 Ensure arrangements are in place to maintain the health and wellbeing of the workforce and support individuals in maintaining their own physical and mental wellbeing. 

(F
) 

M
a

n
a
g

in
g

 r
is

k
s

 a
n

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 

ro
b

u
s
t 

in
te

rn
a

l 
c

o
n

tr
o

l 
a

n
d

 s
tr

o
n

g
 p

u
b

li
c
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

M
a

n
a
g

in
g

 

R
is

k
 

 Recognise that risk management is an integral part of all activities and must be considered in all aspects of decision making; 

 Implement robust and integrated risk management arrangements and ensure that they are working effectively; and 

 Ensure that responsibilities for managing individual risks are clearly allocated. 

M
a

n
a
g

in
g

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
  Monitor service delivery effectively including planning, specification, execution and independent post implementation review; 

 Make decisions based on relevant, clear objective analysis and advice pointing out the implications and risks inherent in the Council’s financial, social and environmental 

position and outlook; 

 Ensure an effective scrutiny or oversight function is in place which encourages constructive challenge and debate on policies and objectives before, during and after 

decisions are made thereby enhancing the Council’s performance and that of any organisation for which it is responsible;  

 Provide Members and senior management with regular reports on service delivery plans and on progress towards outcome achievement; and 

 Ensure there is consistency between specification stages (such as budgets) and post implementation reporting (e.g. financial statements). 

R
o

b
u

s
t 

in
te

rn
a

l 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 

 Align the risk management strategy and policies on internal control with achieving objectives; 

 Evaluate and monitor the Council’s risk management and internal control arrangements on a regular basis; 

 Ensure effective counter fraud and anti-corruption arrangements are in place; 

 Ensure additional assurance on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the framework of governance, risk management and control is provided by the internal auditor; 

 Ensure an Audit and Governance Committee which is independent of the executive and accountable to the Council: 

 provides a further source of effective assurance regarding arrangements for managing risk and maintaining an effective control environment; and 

 that its recommendations are listened to and acted upon. 

P
age 32



 

 

7 

 

Principle 
Sub 

Principles 
Council Actions and Behaviours 

(F
) 

M
a

n
a
g

in
g

 r
is

k
s

 a
n

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 

th
ro

u
g

h
 r

o
b

u
s

t 
in

te
rn

a
l 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 

a
n

d
 s

tr
o

n
g

 p
u

b
li
c

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

m
a

n
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

M
a

n
a
g

in
g

 D
a
ta

 

 Ensure effective arrangements are in place for the safe collection, storage, use and sharing of data, including processes to safeguard personal data; 

 Ensure effective arrangements are in place and operating effectively when sharing data with other bodies; and 

 Review and audit regularly the quality and accuracy of data used in decision making and performance monitoring; 

S
tr

o
n

g
 p

u
b

li
c

 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 

m
a

n
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

 

 Ensure financial management supports both long term achievement of outcomes and short-term financial and operational performance; and 

 Ensure well –developed financial management is integrated at all levels of planning and control, including management of financial risks and controls. 

(G
) I

m
p

le
m

e
n

ti
n

g
 g

o
o

d
 p

ra
c

ti
c
e

s
 i

n
 t

ra
n

s
p

a
re

n
c
y

, 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 a
n

d
 a

u
d

it
 t

o
 d

e
li

v
e

r 
e

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

 

a
c

c
o

u
n

ta
b

il
it

y
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ti
n

g
 

g
o

o
d

 p
ra

c
ti

c
e

 

in
 

tr
a
n

s
p

a
re

n
c
y
 

 Write and communicate reports for the public and other stakeholders in a fair, balanced and understandable style appropriate to the intended audience ensuring that they 

are easy to access and interrogate; and 

 Strike a balance between providing the right amount of information to satisfy transparency demands and enhance public scrutiny while not being too onerous to provide 

and for users to understand. 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ti
n

g
 g

o
o

d
 

p
ra

c
ti

c
e
s

 i
n

 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 

 Report at least annually on performance, value for money and the stewardship of its resources to stakeholders in a timely and understandable way; 

 Ensure Members and senior management own the results; 

 Ensure robust arrangements for assessing the extent to which the principles contained in this Framework have been applied and publish the results on this assessment 

including an action plan for improvement and evidence to demonstrate good governance (Annual Governance Statement); 

 Ensure that the Framework is applied to jointly managed or shared service organisations as appropriate; and 

 Ensure the performance information that accompanies the financial statements is prepared on a consistent and timely basis and the statements allow for comparison 

with other similar organisations. 

A
s
s

u
ra

n
c
e

 

a
n

d
 e

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

 

a
c

c
o

u
n

ta
b

il
it

y
  Ensure that recommendations for corrective action made by external audit are acted upon; 

 Ensure an effective internal audit service with direct access to Members is in place which provides assurance with regard to governance arrangements and that 

recommendations are acted upon; 

 Welcome peer challenge, reviews and inspections from regulatory bodies and implement recommendations; 

 Gain assurance on risks associated with delivering services through third parties and evidence this in the annual governance statement; and 

 Ensure that when working in partnership, arrangements for accountability are clear and that the need for wider public accountability has been recognised and met. 

 

  

P
age 33



 

 

8 

 

Appendix B - Gloucestershire County Council’s Corporate Governance Framework 
3 

 

‘The International Framework: Good Governance in the Public Sector’ defines ‘governance’ as comprising the arrangements put in place to ensure that the intended outcomes for stakeholders are defined and 

achieved. The framework also states that to deliver good governance in the public sector both governing bodies and individuals working for them must try to achieve the Council’s objectives while acting in the 

public interest at all times. 

C
o

re
 

P
ri

n
c

ip
le

s
 

  
(A) Behaving with 

integrity, 
demonstrating strong 
commitment to ethical 
values, and respecting 
the rule of law 

(B) Ensuring openness 
and comprehensive 
stakeholder 
engagement 

(C) Defining outcomes in 
terms of sustainable 
economic, social, and 
environmental benefits 

(D) Determining the 
interventions 
necessary to optimise 
the achievement of the 
intended outcomes 

(E) Developing the Council’s 
capacity, including the 
capability of its 
leadership and the 
individuals within it 

(F) Managing risks and 
performance through 
robust internal control 
and strong public 
financial management 
 

(G) Implementing good 
practices in 
transparency, 
reporting, and audit to 
deliver effective 
accountability 

E
v
id

e
n

c
e
 o

f 
G

o
o

d
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 

The Constitution Council Strategy Cabinet Reports Consultation Planning and 

Implementation Protocol 

The Constitution The Constitution Audit and Governance 

Committee 

Schemes of Delegation / 

Decision making protocols 

Decision Making Protocols  Council Strategy Budget Consultation Member Development 

Framework 

Audit and Governance 

Committee 

Scrutiny Committee 

Audit and Governance 

Committee  

County Council website 

records all council meetings 

and key decisions 

Scrutiny Framework Stakeholder Engagement Member Induction Programme Scrutiny Framework Decision Making Protocols 

Scrutiny Framework Scrutiny Annual Report Decision Making Protocols Option Appraisals Workforce and Organisational 

Development Strategy 

Financial Regulations / 

Accounting Instructions 

External audit of accounts 

and value for money opinion 

Contract Standing Orders / 

Financial Regulations 

Public Meetings  

 

Commissioning toolkit Council Strategy Leadership Performance 

Management and Leadership 

Development Programme 

External audit of accounts 

and value for money opinion 

/ Statement of Accounts / 

Medium Term Financial 

Strategy 

Annual Statement of 

Accounts  

Statutory Officers Roles 

Chief Executive, Chief 

Financial Officer/Monitoring 

Officer / Legal Services 

Communications Strategy  Option Appraisals Medium Term Financial 

Strategy 

Staff Performance 

Development Review 

Risk Management Policy / 

Strategy / Toolkit  

Annual Governance 

Statement / Assurance 

Framework 

Members and Officers 

Codes of Conduct  

People’s Panel 

 

Strategic Commissioning 

Plans 

Decision Making Protocols Peer Reviews / External 

Inspection 

Information Governance Chief Internal Auditors 

Annual Opinion / Report 

Members / Officers Register 

of Interests / Register of  

Gifts and Hospitality 

Consult Gloucestershire – 

Consultation Portal 

 

Service Level / Outcome 

Agreements 

Strategic Commissioning 

Plans  

Benchmarking Strategic Risk Register / 

Operational Risk Registers 

Internal Audit Service 

Protocol for Member Officer 

Relations 

Joint Strategic Needs 

Assessment 

Annual Business Plans Risk Management Policy / 

Strategy 

Internally led reviews / 

independent challenge 

Risk Based Internal Auditing 

Service / planning  

Strategic performance, 

financial and risk reporting 

framework 

Anti-fraud and Corruption 

Policy and Strategy 

Strategic performance, 

financial and risk reporting 

framework 

Risk Management Policy / 

Strategy 

Alternative Service Delivery 

Models 

Alternative Service Delivery 

Models 

Chief Internal Auditors 

Annual Opinion / Report 

Open Data and 

Transparency Code 

Anti-Bribery and Anti Money 

Laundering Policies 

Open Data and 

Transparency Code 

Social Value Policy Strategic performance, 

financial and risk reporting 

framework 

Shared Services Programme Strategic performance, 

financial and risk reporting 

framework 

Website 

Whistleblowing Policy Customer feedback / 

Complaints Policy 

Strategic performance, 

financial and risk reporting 

framework 

Annual Business Plans Continuing Professional 

Development Programmes 

Anti-fraud and Corruption 

Policy and Strategy 

FOI Annual Report 

Risk Management Policy / 

Strategy 

FOI Publication Scheme Environmental Information 

Regulations (EIR) 

 Safety, Health and Wellbeing Anti Bribery Policy / Anti 

Money Laundering Policy 

Complaints and 

Compliments Annual Report 

Procurement Strategy / 

Guidance 

Annual Statement of 

Accounts and Annual 

Governance Statement 

published 

  Periodic staff surveys Emergency / Business 

Continuity Management 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 34

http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35180/Issueno27January2017.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35438/Item%206%20-%20Council%20Strategy%20Document%202017%20to%202018.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=117
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/consultation
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/consultation
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35180/Issueno27January2017.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35180/Issueno27January2017.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=655&Year=0
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=655&Year=0
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35180/Issueno27January2017.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35180/Issueno27January2017.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35180/Issueno27January2017.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35438/Item%206%20-%20Council%20Strategy%20Document%202017%20to%202018.pdf
https://gloucestershire-consult.objective.co.uk/portal/council/budgets201718/budget201718
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=655&Year=0
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=655&Year=0
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=655&Year=0
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=655&Year=0
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35180/Issueno27January2017.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35180/Issueno27January2017.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35180/Issueno27January2017.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35180/Issueno27January2017.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35180/Issueno27January2017.pdf
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/article/18809/Options-Appraisal
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35180/Issueno27January2017.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35180/Issueno27January2017.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35180/Issueno27January2017.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35180/Issueno27January2017.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35438/Item%206%20-%20Council%20Strategy%20Document%202017%20to%202018.pdf
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/leadership
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/leadership
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/leadership
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/statement-of-accounts/
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/statement-of-accounts/
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35180/Issueno27January2017.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35180/Issueno27January2017.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35180/Issueno27January2017.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35180/Issueno27January2017.pdf
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/6778/gcc_communications_strategy_2013_-_2015_feb_2013o-54514.pdf
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/article/18809/Options-Appraisal
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=117&MId=8406&Ver=4
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=117&MId=8406&Ver=4
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/appraisals
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/appraisals
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/riskmanagement
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/riskmanagement
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/statement-of-accounts/
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/statement-of-accounts/
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/statement-of-accounts/
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35180/Issueno27January2017.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35180/Issueno27January2017.pdf
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/gloucestershire-county-council/council-and-democracy/consultations/consult-gloucestershire-the-peoples-panel/
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/media/31594/Strategic-Commissioning-Plan-for-201516/PDF/SCP_Plan_15-16.docx
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/media/31594/Strategic-Commissioning-Plan-for-201516/PDF/SCP_Plan_15-16.docx
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35180/Issueno27January2017.pdf
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/childrensofsted
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/childrensofsted
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/information-management-security-and-governance
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35180/Issueno27January2017.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35180/Issueno27January2017.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35180/Issueno27January2017.pdf
https://gloucestershire-consult.objective.co.uk/portal/
https://gloucestershire-consult.objective.co.uk/portal/
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/media/29622/OA-Blank-Template/doc/OA_template_2014-15.docx
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/media/29622/OA-Blank-Template/doc/OA_template_2014-15.docx
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/businessplanning
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/businessplanning
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s30344/Item%2013%20-%20Performance%20Report%202015-16%20Quarter%204.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s30344/Item%2013%20-%20Performance%20Report%202015-16%20Quarter%204.pdf
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/article/7341/Internal-Audit
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35180/Issueno27January2017.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35180/Issueno27January2017.pdf
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/businessplanning
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/riskmanagement
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/riskmanagement
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/fraud
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/fraud
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/riskmanagement
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/riskmanagement
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/transparency/
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/transparency/
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/fraud
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/fraud
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/transparency/
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/transparency/
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/article/18808/Social-Value
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/article/13115/Partnership-Working
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/fraud
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/complaints
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/complaints
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/businessplanning
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/fraud
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/fraud
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/riskmanagement
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/riskmanagement
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/3478/gloucestershire_county_council_publication_scheme_-_2012-27832.xlsx
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/article/8302/Environmental-Information-Regulations-EIR
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/article/8302/Environmental-Information-Regulations-EIR
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/she
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/fraud
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/fraud
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/article/18793/Procurement
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/article/18793/Procurement
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/statement-of-accounts/
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/statement-of-accounts/
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/statement-of-accounts/
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/statement-of-accounts/
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/bcm
http://staffnet.gloscc.gov.uk/bcm


 

 

9 

 

 

Code of Corporate 
Governance 
2016-2017 
 
December 2016 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Statement of Accounts 

Briefing Session to cover: 

• Statutory Framework 

• Role of Members of the Audit & Governance 
Committee 

• Key changes for 2016/17 

 Format of main Statements, now report under 
management structure service areas headings 

• External Audit Process / Findings 

• Key Statements, and what they mean 

• The future 

• Questions 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 37

A
genda Item

 2



Statutory Framework 

 
• Statutory Duty  - Annual Accounts 

• Prescribed Format  (CIPFA – CODE) 

• International Financial Reporting Standards 

 

 

 

OUTTURN                           ACCOUNTS 

 

???? 

P
age 38



Statutory Framework cont. 

• The Accounts and Audit Regulations require that the draft 

accounts for the financial year 1st  April to 31st March are 

approved by the Council’s Section 151 Officer before 30th 

June, and audited accounts be approved by an appropriate 

committee of the Council by 30th September. 

• From 2017/18 these dates will be 31st May and 31th July. 

 

 

P
age 39



• Draft Statement of Accounts need to be signed by the Strategic 

Finance Director by 30th June confirming that the accounts : 

reflect authority’s financial position 

give a true and fair view of income & expenditure during period of accounts 

and financial position as at end of period  

• There is a 30 working day public inspection, which must include the first 

10 days of July and commence the day after the accounts are 

published. 

• Audited accounts, including the Annual Governance Statement, 

together with an audit opinion and report are presented to Audit & 

Governance Committee.  The audited accounts need to be approved 

by A&G Committee and be made available on the authority website 

before 30th September (31st July for 2017/18 accounts).  

• 2016/17 Accounts undertaken in accordance with new regulations in 

advance as a trial run. 

 

P
age 40



Role of Members 

• Resolution 

• Demonstrate: 

  ownership of accounting statements 

 confidence in the Finance Director 

 

•  Approval when: 

 broad understanding of the content, 

 consistent with other financial information received, 

 happy with answers to specific questions.  

P
age 41



Key Changes for 2016/17: 

Presentational Changes to Main Statements- 

Reporting Areas 

 
• Changes to Service lines reported within the Comprehensive Income 

& Expenditure Statement: 

 Reporting lines now reflect the Council’s own management structure 

service areas and not prescribed SERCOP structure previously used. 

 New disclosure, Expenditure & Funding Analysis (Note 4) within the 

accounts which aims to provide a reconciliation between the reported outturn 

position for specific service areas to the final statement of accounts position. 

This should assist members and other stakeholders in linking the two reported 

positions. (See Handout 2) 

P
age 42



External Audit Process 

• Provided with accounts and working papers beginning of 

June 

• Year end audit between June – July 

• Highlight material issues  

 Impact – figures may change 

• Highlight non material issues  

 Impact 

  may or may not amend 

  changes to internal processes 

 Audit Certificate and Annual Governance Report 

P
age 43



Format of the Accounts 

• Foreword & Narrative Report 

• Statement of Responsibilities  

• Annual Governance Statement  

• Statement of Accounting Policies 

• Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement 

• Movement in Reserves Statement  

• Balance Sheet 

• Cash Flow Statement 

• Notes to the Financial Statements  

• Pension Fund Accounts 

P
age 44



Narrative Report 

• Commentary 

• Key events  

• Impact on financial statements 

• Information should not be a surprise 

• Includes text on how the outturn position reconciles the 

statement of accounts   

 

 OUTTURN                            ACCOUNTS 

P
age 45



Key Financial Statements  

• Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

• Movement in Reserves 

• Balance Sheet 

• Cashflow 

• Pension Fund Accounts 

 

P
age 46



Reconciliation 

  

County Fund £m Balance £m 

Balance 31st March 2016 19.848 

Balance 31st March 2017 19.848 0.000 

Outturn £m Balance £m 

Budgeted Contribution to GF 0.000 

Reported Outturn 0.000 

Proposed Reserve Movement 0.000 0.000 

Accounts £m Balance £m 

Reported I&E -19.528 

Reported GF Movement 20.334 

Transfer to Reserves -0.806 0.000 

P
age 47



Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement (Handout 1)  

• Accounting Cost  

• Split into two sections:  

 Surplus or deficit on provision of services: 

• increase or decrease in the net worth  

 Gains and losses not reflected in the surplus or deficit  

• increase or decrease as a result of movements in: 

 fair value of assets, and 

 actuarial gain / loss on pension assets / liabilities 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 48



 
 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement  

 

 Key Changes compared to 2015/16: 

 increase of £18.2m in net service spend 

 decrease of £4.6m on gain on the disposal of assets 

 large increase in the re-measurement of the net defined pension 

liability  £241.7m 

 increase of £18.4m in recognised capital grant and contributions 

Large increase in the revaluation gain on non current assets 

totalling £64.0m 

 

 

 

 

P
age 49



Movement in Reserves 

Statutory adjustments such as replacement of 

depreciation with MRP etc. 

P
age 50



Adjustments Between Accounting Basis and 

Funding Basis under Regulations 
 

 

  

 

  

£m Management 

Reporting 

Accounts 

Revenue provision against debt       8.7 Included Excluded 

Depreciation and Impairment (46.24) Excluded Included 

Gain or loss on sale / disposal of assets     6.69 Excluded Included 

Capital Exp. Charged against GF   13.88 Included Excluded 

Employee Leave Accruals  (0.77) Excluded Included 

Collection Fund Adjustment  (0.87) Excluded Included 

Retirement Benefits  (13.2) Excluded Included 

Capital Grant Movements   65.94 Excluded Included 

Revenue Expenditure funded by Capital  (14.0) Excluded Included 

Financial Instrument Valuations Adjustments      0.2 Excluded Included 

Total  20.33 

P
age 51



Balance Sheet (handout 4) 

• The Balance Sheet shows the Council’s financial position as at 

the year end (31st March).   

• The difference between the value of the assets and liabilities 

represents the Council’s net worth.  

• The net worth of the Council has slightly reduced by £3.48m to 

£378.17m.  

• The headings on the balance sheet represent the following:-  

» Long term Assets  

» Current Assets  

» Current Liabilities  

» Long term Liabilities  

» Reserves / Financing Section  

  

 

 

 

P
age 52



Long Term Assets 

Long Term Assets 

£1,351.4m 

 

Property Plant 

and Equipment 

£1,183.7m 

Heritage Assets 

£0.9m 

 

Assets under 

Construction 

£10.7m 

 

Long Term 

investments 

£129.6m 

 

Long Term 

Debtors  

£26.1m 

 

Intangible 

Assets  

£0.4m 

 

P
age 53



Current Assets 

Current Assets 

£237.0m 

 

Short Term 

investments 

£92.5m 

Cash 

£93.6m 

 

Short 

Term 

Debtors 

£49.1m 

 
Inventories 

£0.7m 

 

Assets Held for 

Sale  

£1.1m 

 

P
age 54



Current Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 

£193.2m 

 

Short 

Term 

Borrowing 

£55.0m 

 

Short Term 

Creditors 

£69.3m 

 Short Term 

Provisions 

£2.3m 

 

Provision for 

Accumulated 

Absences 

£9.4m 

 

Capital Grants 

and RIA 

£57.2m 

P
age 55



Long Term Liabilities 

Long Term 

Liabilities 

£1,017.0m 

 

Liability 

Related to 

Defined Benefit 

Scheme 

£736.6m 

 

Long Term 

Borrowing 

£272.3m 

 
Long Term 

Provisions 

£5.6m 

 

Deferred 

Liability 

£2.5m 

P
age 56



Reserves 

Reserves 

£378.2m 

 Usable reserves 

£235.4m  

Unusable 

Reserves 

£142.8m 

 

Earmarked 

Revenue 

Reserves 

£137.2m 

General Fund 

£19.8m 

 

Capital 

Related 

Reserves 

£78.4m 

P
age 57



Key Changes from 2015/16 
Property Plant & Equipment –increased by £86.6m largely 

due to valuation changes 

Long term investments – increased by £42.3m due to 

additional long term investments with banks, building 

societies and other LA’s 

Cash and Cash Equivalents – reduced by £16.6m to fund 

longer term investments 

Long Term Debtors - increased by £14.8m due to additional 

prepayments on Waste Contract (£16m) offset by received 

in year income relating to loan term loans 

Liability relating to Pensions – increased by £113.3m – 

dependent on actuarial assumptions 

Capital Receipts Reserve – increased by £11.0m 

 

 

 

 

P
age 58



Cash Flow Statement (handout 5) 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

• Shows changes in cash flows during the year.   

• Split into 3 net cashflow activities: 

• Operating Activities 

• Investing Activities 

• Financing Activities 

• Shows the resulting movement in cash flows for both cash and 

cash equivalents.   

• Cash equivalents include short term investments that are 

readily convertible and which are subject to only 

insignificant risk of changes in value  

  

 

 

 

P
age 59



 

 
 

 

External Audit – Key Findings – 16/17 Accounts 

P
age 60



The Future 

 

• No significant changes anticipated for 2017/18 

• Changes to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and IFRS 15 

Revenue from Contracts with Customers in 2018/19 

• Changes to IFRS 16 Leases 2019/20 

Requirements will be reviewed when further guidance is 

provided to ensure full compliance 

   

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 61



 

Questions?? 

 

 

P
age 62



Handout 1 

 

 

 

 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

31st March 2016 31st March 2017
Expenditure Income Net Expenditure Income Net

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Gross Expenditure, Gross Income and Net 
Expenditure of Continuing Operations

227,614 -77,281 150,333 Adults 223,522 -67,507 156,015
24,142 -24,227 -85 Public Health 26,440 -25,629 811

401,282 -294,499 106,783 Children & Families 426,494 -296,615 129,879
130,463 -16,044 114,419 Communities & Infrastructure 128,368 -17,411 110,957

40,321 -7,888 32,433 Business Support Services 36,152 -8,035 28,117
-23,965 -               -23,965 Business Support Recharges -24,101 0 -24,101

21,772 -4,071 17,701 Technical & Corporate 14,589 -439 14,150
821,629 -424,010 397,619 Cost Of Services 831,464 -415,636 415,828

294 -               294 Levies Payable 400 -             400

-                  -11,332 -11,332 Gain/Loss on disposal of non current 
assets

-             -6,690 -6,690

294 -11,332 -11,038 Other Operating Expenditure 400 -6,690 -6,290

17,846 -               17,846 Interest Payable on Debt 17,342 -             17,342

23,770 -               23,770 Net interest on the net defined benefit liability 
(Asset)

21,684 -             21,684

-3,467 -3,467 Investment Interest income -             -3,753 -3,753
41,616 -3,467 38,149 Financing and Investment Income and 

Expenditure
39,026 -3,753 35,273

-                  -47,500 -47,500 Recognised Capital Grants and Contributions -             -65,938 -65,938
-                  -236,027 -236,027 Council Tax -             -250,140 -250,140
-                  -69,449 -69,449 National Non Domestic Rates -             -68,835 -68,835
-                  -67,456 -67,456 Revenue Support Grant -             -49,905 -49,905
-                  -25,780 -25,780 Non Service Related Government Grants -             -25,445 -25,445
-                  -3,268 -3,268 Fire Pensions Top Up Grant -             -4,076 -4,076
-                  -449,480 -449,480 Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income    -             -464,339 -464,339

863,539 -888,289 -24,750 Surplus (-) or Deficit on Provision of 
Services

870,890 -890,418 -19,528

7,328 -20,923 -13,595 Revaluation Gains (-)/Losses (Note 13)  22,698 -100,299 -77,601

-                  -659 -659 Surplus or Deficit on Revaluation of Available 
for Sale Financial Assets (Note 13)

538 -             538

-                  -141,658 -141,658 Remeasurement of the net defined benefit 
liability (Asset)

100,074 -             100,074

7,328 -163,240 -155,912 Other Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure

123,310 -100,299 23,011

870,867 -1,051,529 -180,662 Total Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure

994,200 -990,717 3,483

This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to 
be funded from taxation. Councils raise taxation to cover expenditure in accordance 
with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position 
is shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Net Expenditure 

of continuing 

operations, by 

service area. 

Operational 

cost of 

providing the 

services of the 

Council 

Total Income & 

Expenditure of 

the Council for 

the Year. 

Reconciles to 

the total 

movement on 

the balance 

sheet 

Page 63



Handout 2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Expenditure and Funding Analysis 

2016-17

As Reported 
for Resource 
Management

Adjustments 
between 

Funding and 
Accounting 

Basis

Net Expenditure 
in the 

Comprehensive 
income and 
expenditure 

statement

£000 £000 £000

Adults 152,893 3,122 156,015

Public Health -                  811 811

Children & Families 102,560 27,319 129,879

Communities & Infrastructure 87,339 23,618 110,957

Business Support Services 26,907 1,210 28,117

Support Service Recharges -26,936 2,835 -24,101

Technical & Corporate 51,754 -37,604 14,150

Net cost of Services 394,517 21,311 415,828

Other income and expenditure -394,517 -40,839 -435,356

Surplus or Deficit -                  -19,528 -19,528

Opening General Fund Balance 31st March 2016 19,848        

Surplus/deficit on General Fund -              

Closing General Fund Balance 31st March 2017 19,848          

The objective of the Expenditure and Funding Analysis is to demonstrate to council tax payers how the funding 
available to the Council (i.e. government grants, rents, council tax and business rates) for the year has been 
used in providing services in comparison with those resources consumed or earned in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting practices. The Expenditure and Funding Analysis also shows how this 
expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes between the Council’s services.  Income and expenditure 
accounted for under generally accepted accounting practices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement

Page 64



Handout 3 

 

2016-17

Adjustments from the General 
Fund to arrive at the 
Comprehensive Income & 
Expenditure Statement amounts

As Reported 
for Resource 
Management

Adjustments 
for Capital 
Purposes 

(Note i)

Net change for 
the Pensions 
Adjustments 

(Note ii)

Other 
Differences 

(Note iii)
Total 

Adjustments

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Adults 152,893 4,359 -543 -694 3,122

Public Health  -          -         -  811 811

Children & Families 102,560 22,418 -2,639 7,540 27,319

Communities & Infrastructure 87,339 28,798 2,806 -7,986 23,618

Business Support Services 26,907 3,846  -  -2,636 1,210

Central Support Recharges -26,936  -   -  2,835 2,835

Technical & Corporate 51,754 822 -4,030 -34,396 -37,604

Net Cost of Services 394,517 60,243 -4,406 -34,526 21,311

Other income and expenditure 
from the funding analysis

-394,517 -6,690 21,684 -55,833 -40,839

Difference between General Fund 
Surplus and Deficit and 
Comprehensive Income & 
Expenditure Statement Surplus or 
Deficit -                53,552              17,279               90,359-              19,528-             

Note i Adjustments for Capital Purposes

Note ii   Net Change for the Pensions Adjustments

Benefits pension related expenditure and income:

  For Financing and investment income and expenditure –- the net interest on the defined benefit liability is charged to the CIES.

Note iii  Other Differences

For Financing and investment income and expenditure the other differences column recognises adjustments to the General 
Fund for the timing differences for premiums and discounts. The charge under Taxation and non-specific grant income and 
expenditure represents the difference between what is chargeable under statutory regulations for council tax and NDR that was 
projected to be received at the start of the year and the income recognised under generally accepted accounting practices in 
the Code. This is a timing difference as any difference will be brought forward in future Surpluses or Deficits on the Collection 
Fund.

Adjustments for capital purposes – this column adds in depreciation and impairment and revaluation gains and losses in the 
services line, and for:

Other operating expenditure – adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of income on the disposal of assets and the amounts 
written off for those assets.  

Financing and investment income and expenditure – the statutory charges for capital financing i.e. Minimum Revenue Provision 
and other revenue contributions are deducted from other income and expenditure as these are not chargeable under generally 
accepted accounting practices.

  Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure – capital grants are adjusted for income not chargeable under 
generally accepted accounting practices. Revenue grants are adjusted from those receivable in the year to those receivable 
without conditions or for which conditions were satisfied throughout the year. The Taxation and Non Specific Grant which 
conditions were satisfied throughout the year. The Taxation and Non Specific Grant  Income and Expenditure line is credited 
with capital grants receivable in the year without conditions or for which conditions were satisfied in the year.

For services this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made by the authority as allowed by statute and 
the replacement with current service costs and past service costs.

Other differences between amounts debited/credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and amounts 
payable/receivable to be recognised under statute:

Page 65



Handout 4 

 

 

Balance Sheet

t       As at As at

1st April 31st March
2016 2017
£'000 £'000

1,097,134 Property Plant and Equipment 1,183,711
894 Heritage Assets 894

4,711 Assets under Construction 10,702
541 Intangible Assets 402

87,324 Long Term Investments 129,589
11,278 Long Term Debtors 26,126

1,201,882 Long Term Assets 1,351,424

88,179 Short Term Investments 92,510
2,556 Assets held for Sale 1,121
1,465 Inventories 742

50,772 Short Term Debtors 49,086
110,159 Cash and Cash Equivalents 93,575
253,131 Current Assets 237,034

-49,698 Short Term Borrowing -55,023

-71,951 Short Term Creditors & Revenue Receipts in Advance -69,335
-3,423 Short Term Provisions -2,326

-37,018 Capital Grants and Contributions Receipts in Advance -57,171
-8,645 Provision for Accumulated Absences -9,409

-170,735 Current Liabilities -193,264

-2,529 Deferred Liability -2,494
-3,510 Long Term Provisions -5,563

-273,194 Long Term Borrowing -272,298

-623,385 Liability Related to Defined Benefit Pension Scheme -736,662
-902,618 Long Term Liabilities -1,017,017

381,660 Net Assets 378,177

Usable Reserves
 44,151 Capital Grants & Contributions Unapplied Reserve  46,017
 21,375 Useable Capital Receipts Reserve  32,371

19,848 General Fund Balance 19,848
137,978 Earmarked Reserves 137,172

223,352 235,408
Unusable Reserves

-8,645 Short Term Accumulated Absences Account -9,409
662,115 Capital Adjustment Account 691,013
125,179 Revaluation Reserve 196,023

2,979 Collection Fund Adjustment Account 2,123

2,300 Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve 2,300
2,031 Available for Sale Revaluation Reserve 1,493

-4,266 Financial Instrument Adjustment Account -4,112
-623,385 Defined Pension Fund Reserve -736,662
158,308 142,769

381,660 Total Reserves 378,177

The Balance Sheet shows the value, as at the Balance Sheet date, of the assets and liabilities 
recognised by the Council. The net assets of the Council (assets less liabilities) are matched by the 
reserves held by the Council. Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of reserves 
are usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the Council may use to provide services, subject to the 
need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example 
the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The 
second category of reserves are those that the Council is not able to use to provide services. This 
category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the 
Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets 
are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown within the Movement in Reserves 

This is normally the largest 

asset type held on the 

balance sheet as this 

includes the Council’s 

property portfolio 

Assets which are expected 

to provide benefit to the 

Council for more than 12 

months 

Reconciles to the figure 

reported within the Cash flow 

Statement – see Handout  5 

Unuseable reserves 

cannot be used to deliver 

services. Some 

unuseable reserves 

become a charge to the 

CIES but are not subject 

to member influence  

Net worth of the Council’s Assets. 

This has reduced in year by £3.483m 

which reconciles to the total figure 

shown on the Comprehensive  

Income & Expenditure Statement 

Page 66



Handout 5 

 

Cash Flow Statement

2015/16 2016/17
£'000 £'000

-24,750 Net Surplus (-) or Deficit on the Provision of Services -19,528

-78,408 Adjustments to Net Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 
for Non-Cash Movements (note 14)

-72,772

69,953 Adjustments for items included in the Net Surplus or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services that are Investing and Financing Activities 
(note 14)

83,481

-33,205 Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities -8,819

-27,719 Investing Activities (Note 15) 29,989

20,014 Financing Activities (Note 16) -4,586

-40,910 Net Increase or Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents 16,584

-69,249 Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period -110,159

-110,159 Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the reporting period (Note 9) -93,575

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council during the 
reporting period. The statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by 
classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising 
from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the Council are funded by 
way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of services provided by the Council. Investing 
activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to 
contribute to the Council’s future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in 
predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Council.

Reconciles to figure shown on the CIES

Reconciles to the figure shown on the balance sheet 

P
age 67



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 & Local Code of Corporate Governance 2016/17
	GCC Code of Corporate Governance

	2 Annual Statement of Accounts
	Handouts for July 2017


